
GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

There will be a regular meeting held by the Garberville Sanitary District Board of Directors at the  
GSD District Office 

919 Redwood DR. Garberville, CA 
 

Date of Meeting:  July 19th, 2022 
5:00 p.m. – Open Public Session 

 
Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the governing board regarding an open session item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection in the District Office located at 919 Redwood Dr. during normal business hours. 
 
NOTE: The Board of Directors may require staff and the public to participate, via teleconference or    
              Otherwise electronically. This meeting is compliant with AB361 which allows for a deviation of  
              Teleconference rules required by the Brown Act during a proclaimed state of emergency. 
 
I. REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
II. ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM  
              Rio Anderson___, Doug Bryan___, Julie Lyon____, Dan Thomas_____ 
 
III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA - Action to add or delete items from any portion of the agenda or to discuss any consent agenda 

items must be taken prior to adoption of the agenda. 
 
 Motion:  Second:  Vote: 
  
IV. THE BOARD WILL ENTER CLOSED SESSION AT END OF MEETING IF NEEDED 

               Conference with Real Property Negotiators (Government Code § 54956.8): 
 
V. OPEN SESSION 
 
VI. COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

Up to fifteen minutes of this portion of the meeting are reserved for members of the public to address the Board on items not listed on the 
agenda and within the jurisdiction of the GSD Board.  Speakers are limited to 3 minutes.  The GSD Board is prohibited by law from 
taking action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the GSD Board does not 
respond to public comment at this time. 
 
General Public / Community Groups  
 

             Remote Public Comments: 
 1. Submit written public comments to [insert email address]. Emails are distributed to the  
  Garberville Board of Directors and staff. To ensure the GSD Board has the opportunity to review 
  information prior to the meeting, send emails by 1 p.m. on meeting date.  
 
VII. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS – Routine report of activities, operations, meetings / conferences held and/or attended 
by Board members, Staff, and General Manager 
Operations Staff-                                River Level and Operational Concerns 

Office Staff-  

Board Members-          

Correspondence-   Pg. 4-7 

General Manager—Ralph Emerson   Pg. 8 

Government Code Section 54954.3 provides that the public will have an opportunity to address the Board on any item described on a regular or 
special meeting either before or during the consideration of that item.  The Board reserves the right to limit the time of presentation by individuals 
and groups 1



 
 
 
 
VIII. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

A. CONSENT AGENDA          
Notice to the Public 

All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and non-controversial, require no discussion and are 
expected to have unanimous Board support and may be enacted by the Board by one motion and voice vote.  There will be no 
separate discussion of these items; however, before the Board votes on the motion to adopt, members of the Board may request 
that specific items be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and action.  Any items will be considered after 
the motion to approve the Consent Agenda as time permits. 

 A.1 Approve Financials Date May 2022   - pg. 9-20  
A.2 Approve June 28th, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes - pg. 21-24 
 Approve May 3rd, 2022 Special Meeting Minutes   
A.3        Operations Safety Report-  pg. 25-28  

                  Motion:  Second:  Vote: 
  
 

B.          GENERAL BUSINESS – Action items 

                                                                                                         Notice to the Public  
                           The Board of Directors will allow public comment on agenda items at the time the agenda item is considered. However 
                                We ask that any person who wishes to speak on an agenda item submit a request prior to the meeting being called to 
                                 order. You will be given 5 minutes on each agenda item that you wish to comment on and the Board of Directors will 
                                 discuss the item amongst themselves with no other public comment. 
                                    
                                      
                          B.1      Tank Replacement Project Update                                                     pg. 29-31   
                                                 (action required)  
                                         Motion:                         Second:                          Vote: 
 
                          B.2  LIHWAP-Customer Assistance Program                                                pg. 32 
                                                (discussion—possible action)   Mary and Jennie 
                                        Motion:                         Second:                          Vote:           
  

      B.3 Board Election Time Line and Process                                                 pg. 33   
                                               (discussion-possible action)                
                                        Motion:                         Second:                          Vote:           
 
  B.4  Joint Use Agreement—Equipment and staff                                             pg. 34-37 
                                               (discussion-possible action)    
                                        Motion:                         Second:                          Vote:           
 

                    B.5        Possible Negotiations Regarding Property Required for Tank Project                   
Property: Approximately (undetermined) acres of land and is a portion of the  

               parcel designated as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers APN 031-211-010, APN 031-211-012, 
               APN 031-211-021, APN 223-061-016, APN 223-061-018 

  Garberville Sanitary District Negotiator(s): Ralph Emerson (General Manager),  
  Jennie Short (GSD Consultant Project Manager, and Russ Gans (GSD attorney) 
   Negotiating parties/Negotiating With: Gregory and Megan Swaffar. 
  Under negotiation: Price and/or terms of payment/conditions, Ground Lease,     

              Development agreement and property size. 
                                 (discussion—possible action)       (Negotiating team) 
                                         Motion:                         Second:                          Vote:       
 
 
 2



 
 
 
 
 
 
                   B.6      Southern Humboldt Community Healthcare District, 
                                      Conditional Will-Serve Agreement 
                                     (discussion-possible action)                Agreement at meeting 
                                  Motion:                           Second:                          Vote: 

                                                                      
 
 
 C. POLICY REVISION / ADOPTION  
               
                         
                           C.1    Water Ordinance—Drought Plan-Enforcement-Sec 14.5                                     pg. 38-42 
                                        (discussion—action requested)  Resolution-2nd reading-#22-009 
                                            Motion:                           Second:                          Vote: 
 
                            C.2    Required Water Meter Discontinuance—Base Rate Requirements                     pg. 43 
                                         (discussion—action requested)  Resolution-2nd reading 
                                             Motion:                           Second:                          Vote: 
 
                            C.3     Water Ordinance 14.1 and 15.7 – Filling Pools                                                    pg. 44-48 
                                          (discussion—action requested)  Resolution-2nd reading- Resolution 22-010 
                                               Motion:                           Second:                          Vote: 
 
 
 
   IX.          NO CLOSED SESSION                
 

 
 
 X.        RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 
                        
                Report of any actions taken in Closed Session  
 
                                              
 
XI. ITEMS FOR NEXT BOARD MEETING 

1. Tank Replacement Project 
                  2.   Conference with Real Property Negotiators 
                  3.   River and Drought Conditions 
                  4.    
                  5.    
 
 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
The GSD Board meeting agenda will be posted at the District Office no later than. Date:  Saturday, July 16, 2022. The agenda will be on the GSD 
website and is emailed to the local newspapers and those who have requested an agenda in writing or e-mail.  
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a special accommodation to participate, please contact the Garberville 
Sanitary District Office at (707)923-9566 at least 48 hours in advance. 

3



Newsom Signs Expansive $308 Billion 2022-2023 State Budget  

By Vanessa Gonzales posted 21 hours ago  

    

 

 
On Thursday, June 30, Governor Gavin Newsom signed a $308 billion State Budget and an 
additional 29 budget trailer bills. Over the June 25-26 weekend, the Governor and legislative 
leadership came to an agreement on the budget framework and supplemental budget bills were 
heard the following week. The expansive State Budget affects special districts in a multitude of 
areas including climate change, infrastructure, parks, housing, emergency response, and 
transportation. 

  

Budget Overview 

This historic budget includes a $97.5 billion surplus. With respect to reserves and an impending 
financial cliff, according to the Legislative Analyst’s Office, the Budget reflects the banking of 
$37.2 billion in budgetary reserves including the Proposition 2 Budget Stabilization Account, the 
Safety Net Reserve, and $3.5 billion in the state’s operating reserve, and allocates 93 percent of 
the discretionary surplus for one-time purposes avoiding the State Appropriations Limit  known 
as the Gann Limit. 

  

The Gann Limit serves to constrain state spending with any excess revenues above the 
determined limit needing to be redistributed between schools throughout the state and taxpayer 
refunds. Therefore, the 2022-23 State Budget has been amended to include investments in state 
infrastructure and to provide relief to families in the form of $9.5 billion for the Better for 
Families Tax Refund and a total of $17 billion for the broad-based relief package providing a 

4

https://www.csda.net/people/vanessa-gonzales
https://www.thecentersquare.com/california/lao-california-veers-near-fiscal-cliff-a-year-after-record-budget/article_0adfb46c-d617-11ec-97bd-a7d568c6ec84.html
https://lao.ca.gov/reports/2021/4416/SAL-042121.pdf


refund to Californians of up to $1,050 depending on family size and income level. The 2022-23 
Budget will make substantial investments in homelessness, behavioral health, and additional 
protection from the impacts caused by drought and wildfire. 

  

Below are highlights from the 2022-23 Budget and CSDA budget priorities that have been 
included: 

  

Climate Change  

The 2022-23 Budget will allocate an additional $39 billion over the next five years to expand 
zero-emission vehicles, climate resilience and innovation, and the encouragement of lithium 
production in the state. This investment builds upon the historic $15 billion in climate change 
investments made in the previous year’s budget. 

  

Water Resilience, Drought, and Energy  

With California heading into its third year of drought, the 2022-23 Budget allocates $1.2 billion 
to drought support and an additional $1.5 billion for long-term water resilience. Significant 
investments in water include $431.5 million in immediate drought support to urban water 
districts and smaller community water suppliers, and $500 million for drinking water, water 
supply and reliability, and flood control. 

  

On March 18, CSDA, in a coalition with the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA), 
California Municipal Utilities Association (CMUA), the California Water Association, and the 
California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA), submitted a letter to Assembly Member 
Richard Bloom and Senator Bob Wieckowski requesting an extension of the California Water 
and Wastewater Arrearage Payment Program. Although an extension was not explicitly provided 
in the 2022-23 Budget, the Budget includes $200 million to address residential water and 
wastewater arrearages. 

  

In addition, the Budget plans to allocate $4.3 billion allowing the state to provide reliability 
insurance through reserves, an accelerated deployment of clean energy projects, and protection to 
ratepayers coming in many forms, including the arrearage budget allocation. The Budget also 
includes a total of $8.1 billion one-time General Fund to support clean energy investments and 
energy reliability support, including $1.2 billion for the California Arrearages Payment Program. 

5



  

Wildfires  

The State Budget reflects $1.2 billion to be allocated to the continuation of building forest and 
wildfire resilience, and includes new CAL FIRE staffing and operational enhancements to 
support these efforts in the form of $671.4 million to add new positions and the expansion of 
CAL FIRE programs. 

  

On April 20, CSDA submitted a formal letter supporting the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire 
District’s $44 million Zinfadel First Responder Training Facility budget request. While the full 
amount of $44 million was not included in the 2022-23 Budget, the request was acknowledged in 
Assembly Bill 178 and the Governor and Legislature have allocated $13 million for the training 
facility. 

  

Infrastructure 

An emphasis has been placed on infrastructure in the upcoming year’s budget, making a massive 
commitment to higher education, broadband infrastructure, energy reliability, and creating a 
strategic reserve. The 2022-23 Budget includes a commitment of $47 billion in state funds over 
the next few years for infrastructure. These investments are in addition to the billions of dollars 
in new federal funding from the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act over the next five years. 
The State Budget prognosticates that, for every $1 billion invested in California infrastructure, 
roughly 13,000 quality jobs will be created in the state. 

  

This significant budgetary investment reflects $14.8 billion allocated for transportation, $6.1 
billion for zero-emission vehicles over the next four years, $1.2 billion for wildfire and forest 
resilience projects over the next two years, and $2.8 billion for drought resilience and response 
over the next four years, including other infrastructure-related investments. 

  

Parks and Recreation  

To provide equitable and safe access to the state’s natural resources, open spaces, and parks and 
recreational opportunities, the Budget includes $131.3 million. This allocation includes $50 
million for future state parks infrastructure projects, $13.5 million to provide state park passes 
through local libraries in a pilot project designed to increase the number of passes available, and 
$25 million to fund cultural and art installations to promote cultural awareness and natural 
resource connectivity. 

6

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB178


  

Housing 

The Budget includes $2 billion for the development of affordable housing in California, building 
upon the $10.3 billion housing investment made last year. Furthermore, Senate Bill 197 
(budgetary legislation relating to housing) amends Section 65589.9 of the Government Code to 
facilitate “pro-housing local policy” criteria including the reduction of development impact fees. 

  

CSDA has engaged on several bills related to affordable housing, development impact fees, and 
the potential benefits and concerns related to these bills introduced in this session. A more 
detailed account of those bills and CSDA’s efforts to amend them can be found here. 

  

Furthermore, the 2022-23 Budget includes $50 million in one-time State General Fund money to 
provide grants to reimburse pre-development and non-recurring closing costs associated with the 
construction of accessory dwelling units (ADUs), $400 million for the Multifamily Housing 
Program, and $410 million for Adaptive Reuse over the next two years. 

  

Emergency Response  

The 2022-23 Budget includes $2.4 billion for the Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES), 
which serves as the state’s primary point for all emergencies and disasters in the state. Of that 
$2.4 billion, $25 million will be provided to Cal OES to support projects related to regional 
response and readiness. 

  

Transportation 

The 2022-23 Budget includes roughly $15 billion for transportation infrastructure over the next 
four years. Of the $15 billion, the State Budget includes $1.2 billion to increase goods movement 
capacity on roadways, rails, and at port terminals, $1 billion for active transportation (walking 
and biking, increased safety, and mobility, etc.), and $200 million in climate adaptation programs 
to identify vulnerabilities associated with climate. 

  

CSDA will continue monitoring budget updates throughout the duration of the Legislative 
session and keep our members informed of budgetary priorities moving forward 

7

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB197
https://www.csda.net/blogs/vanessa-gonzales/2022/05/09/development-impact-fee-legislation-amended-to-addr


Garberville Sanitary District 
PO Box 211 

Garberville, CA. 95542 
(707)923-9566 

 
 
 
 

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
Date: July 19, 2022 

 
 

There have been multiple meetings regarding the tank replacement project which will be 
discussed as an agenda item. I am optimistic that we have concurrence on a plan, with the 
direction we should take. 
 
The weather has been heating up but has not prohibited us from making improvements in 
operations procedures and maintaining equipment in preparation for winter rain season. There 
have been electrical outages as a result of heat and overload on system. PG&E has been telling 
customers that there will be delays in receiving electricity for new customers and good chance of 
outages this summer. We are working to ensure adequate supply of fuel for generators and 
vehicles, so that we are prepared for long electricity outages. 
 
We have looked at alternative electricity sources over the years but the initial cost made it 
prohibitive without grant funding. We are going to renew our efforts to find alternative sources 
of electricity, which includes many of the previously researched options. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted: 
 
Ralph Emerson 

8



Board of Directors Agenda Item for the July 19, 2022 Meeting           Page 1 of 2 
Financial Statements for period ending: May 2022 

BOARD AGENDA MEMORANDUM – Consent Item 
 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2022 

To: Garberville Sanitary District Board of Directors 

From: Jennie Short, Consultant Project Manager 

Subject: May 2022 Financial Statements 
 
 
GENERAL OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The attached Financial Statements are for May 2022. 
 
Table 1.  Overview of the “Combined Revenue & Expense Report for Board” 
 

Description Annual 
Budget 

YTD  
Actual 

YTD  
Budget 

YTD 
Difference  

Total Revenue  
(excl. connection fees) 1,183,185.00  1,035,740.47  1,043,421.33  (7,680.86)  

Total Expense  
(excl. Depreciation) 904,855.00  821,113.35  820,082.04  1,031.31   

Net Income  
(excl. Depreciation) 278,330.00  214,627.12  223,339.29  (8,712.17)  

Payroll 456,015.00  419,328.77  412,413.80  6,914.97   
Repair & Maintenance + 
Supplies 101,200.00 81,037.25  92,808.37  (11,771.12)  

 
As can be seen on the “Statement of Cash Flows Report for Board – July – May 2022” and 
the “Balance Sheet Report for Board as of May 31, 2022”: 
 

• Operational revenues are $(18,815.30) UNDER budget, mainly due to less water 
and sewer charges than anticipated. 
 

• Operational expenses are $ 1,215.02 OVER budget.   
 

• Net cash INCREASE for May is $20,359.93 and the year to date is a net cash 
INCREASE of $ 59,253.04. 

 
• Total payments on loans so far this year total $ 88,695.99 of a budgeted year-end 

total of $96,885.56.  
 

9



Board of Directors Agenda Item for the July 19, 2022 Meeting           Page 2 of 2 
Financial Statements for period ending: May 2022 

• Overtime payroll costs are $16,130.39 OVER budget. 
 

• The repair and maintenance plus supplies expenses are $ 11,771.12 UNDER the 
YTD budgeted amount.   
 

• Expenditures for fixed asset acquisition so far this year total $ 104,381.41 of a 
budgeted year-end total of $123,000.  The projects anticipated were: 
 

Asset Description 
Annual 
Amount 

Budgeted 

Amount 
Spent 
YTD 

Robertson + Wallen + Hurlbutt Tank 
Replacement – Planning Project 245,000 14,326.95 

Robertson PRV Construction 0 55,002.69 
Hurlbutt Tank Replacement - SRF 90,000 (2,768.00) 
Meadows Aerial Waterline SRF 
Grant/Loan  8,000  

SRF DW Financing Reimbursement (325,000)  
Bear Canyon Sewer Aerial 
Preliminary Design 5,000 225.00 

WWTP Chlorine Analyzer/Sample 
Pump/Flow Meters/Reprogram 25,000  

Sunnybank Telemetry & Pumps 50,000 15,716.41 
Knight’s Lane – Melville Sewerline 2,000 7,939.24 
SWTP Filter Media (7030) 13,000 0 
Church Street Paving + Valves  6,800.00 
Pumps – Rebuild FW @ SWTP  7,139.12 
Unspecified 10,000  

Total: 123,000.00 104,381.41 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTIONS 
 
Review the reports and approve them with the consent agenda. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Statement of Cash Flows – Current Month and Fiscal Year to Date  
2. Balance Sheet with Comparison = Current month and Fiscal Year beginning           

July 1, 2021.  
3. Revenue and Expense Report – Combined Report for Water & Sewer containing 

current month actual, fiscal year to date actual, and annual budget for May  
4. Check Register Report for all checks issued in May. 

10



 11:05 AM
 07/12/22

 GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT
 Statement of Cash Flows Report for Board

 July 2021 through May 2022
May 22 Jul '21 - May 22

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income (24,689.15) (170,803.64)
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income
to net cash provided by operations:

11000 · Accounts Receivable - Other 3,703.05 (460.62)
1115 · Acct Receivable - Collection 3,501.80
1100 · Accounts Receivable 7,048.53 21,787.18
1110 · Accts Receivable Over Payments 409.38 (581.59)
1500 · Prepaid Insurance 4,027.32 (7,467.35)
1501 · Prepaid Workers Comp 863.81 (376.77)
1510 · Prepaid Licenses and Permits 2,611.91 (2,611.95)
1121 · Payroll Tax Overpayment (304.15)
2000 · Accounts Payable 16,424.02 23,629.49
2220 · Accrued State PR Taxes 26.84 23.78
20001 · Accounts Payable - SWRCB 763.50
2300 · Service Deposits (200.00)

Net cash provided by Operating Activities 10,425.71 (133,100.32)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

SEWER:Collection (7,939.24)
Accumulated Depreciation-Water 22,690.66 249,597.26
Accumulated Depreciation-Sewer 12,348.50 135,833.50
CIP-Church Street (6,800.00)
CIP-Hurlbutt Tank Replacement 2,768.00
CIP- Bear Canyon Sewerline (225.00)
CIP - Wallan & Robertson Tank (431.25) (69,329.64)
WATER:Pumps (7,139.12)
SEWER:Pumps (15,716.41)

Net cash provided by Investing Activities 34,607.91 281,049.35
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2500 · N/P - SWRCB (24,585.28)
2700 · SRF Loan - Water (22,991.18) (45,982.36)
2665 · RCAC Loan - #0998 Backhoe (1,682.51) (18,128.35)

Net cash provided by Financing Activities (24,673.69) (88,695.99)
Net cash increase for period 20,359.93 59,253.04
Cash at beginning of period 853,398.50 814,505.39

Cash at end of period 873,758.43 873,758.43

11



 GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT
 Balance Sheet Report for Board

 As of May 31, 2022

Current Month
May 31, 2022

Balance

Year Beginning 
July 1, 2021

Balance
Difference Comments

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1036 · Sewer Capital Improvement Fund 9,998.12 0.00 9,998.12 Transfer to Open Acct

1035 · Water Capital Improvement Fund 17,998.92 0.00 17,998.92 Transfer to Open Acct

1005 · Umpqua Checking - Operating 180,400.15 40,294.77 140,105.38 Transfer from County

1006 · Umpqua System Reserve - Water 25,811.71 25,809.42 2.29
1007 · Umpqua System Reserve - Sewer 31,269.94 31,267.18 2.76
1011 · Water Enterprise Fund 46,831.96 46,827.66 4.30
1030 · County Treasury - Sewer Reserve 420,064.59 478,899.49 (58,834.90) Transfer to Checking

1031 · County Treasury - Water Reserve 141,265.36 191,265.36 (50,000.00) Transfer to Checking

1040 · Petty Cash 39.51 39.51 0.00
1050 · Cash Drawer 78.17 102.00 (23.83)

Total Checking/Savings 873,758.43 814,505.39 59,253.04
Accounts Receivable

1115 · Acct Receivable - Collection 0.00 3,501.80 (3,501.80) Paid-Arrearage Program
11000 · Accounts Receivable - Other 3,918.04 3,457.42 460.62

Total Accounts Receivable 3,918.04 6,959.22 (3,041.18)
Other Current Assets

1100 · Accounts Receivable
1110 · Accts Receivable Over Payments (2,141.60) (2,723.19) 581.59
1100 · Accounts Receivable - Other 102,146.57 123,933.75 (21,787.18) Paid-Arrearage Program

Total 1100 · Accounts Receivable 100,004.97 121,210.56 (21,205.59)
1121 · Payroll Tax Overpayment 304.15 0.00 304.15
1500 · Prepaid Insurance 10,907.01 3,439.66 7,467.35
1501 · Prepaid Workers Comp 376.77 0.00 376.77
1510 · Prepaid Licenses and Permits 2,611.95 0.00 2,611.95
1550 · Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (5,000.00) (5,000.00) 0.00

Total Other Current Assets 109,204.85 119,650.22 (10,445.37)
Total Current Assets 986,881.32 941,114.83 45,766.49
Fixed Assets

CIP-Church Street 6,800.00 0.00 6,800.00 Pave & Raise Valve Box

CIP-Hurlbutt Tank Replacement 2,768.00 (2,768.00) Move to W&R Tank

CIP- Bear Canyon Sewerline 988.75 763.75 225.00
CIP - Meadows Aerial Waterline 6,051.76 6,051.76 0.00
CIP - Wallan & Robertson Tank 94,365.12 25,035.48 69,329.64 PRV Parts 

WATER
Land - Water 94,594.62 94,594.62 0.00
Water Easements & Intangibles 177,397.11 177,397.11 0.00
Treatment 79,919.93 79,919.93 0.00
Distribution 2,804,484.17 2,804,484.17 0.00
Pumps 10,048.99 2,909.87 7,139.12 Rebuild FW Pump
DWTP (Water) 2015 4,968,104.88 4,968,104.88 0.00

Total WATER 8,134,549.70 8,127,410.58 7,139.12
Water System 142,474.97 142,474.97 0.00

12



 GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT
 Balance Sheet Report for Board

 As of May 31, 2022

Current Month
May 31, 2022

Balance

Year Beginning 
July 1, 2021

Balance
Difference Comments

SEWER
Land - Sewer 129,810.68 129,810.68 0.00
Collection 2,395,295.12 2,387,355.88 7,939.24 Knight's Ln

Treatment 507,552.59 507,552.59 0.00
Pumps 32,648.40 16,931.99 15,716.41 Sunnybank Pumps
Sewer Project - 2011 2,792,451.91 2,792,451.91 0.00

Total SEWER 5,857,758.70 5,834,103.05 23,655.65
Office Equipment 38,244.29 38,244.29 0.00
Equipment 237,123.48 237,123.48 0.00
Vehicles 121,205.99 121,205.99 0.00
MSR/SOI and Annexation Project 157,367.08 157,367.08 0.00
Accumulated Depreciation-Water (2,737,187.56) (2,487,590.30) (249,597.26)
Accumulated Depreciation-Sewer (2,490,974.60) (2,355,141.10) (135,833.50)

Total Fixed Assets 9,568,767.68 9,849,817.03 (281,049.35)
TOTAL ASSETS 10,555,649.00 10,790,931.86 (235,282.86)
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
2000 · Accounts Payable 49,700.20 26,070.71 23,629.49

Total Accounts Payable 49,700.20 26,070.71 23,629.49
Other Current Liabilities

20001 · Accounts Payable - SWRCB 763.50 0.00 763.50
2300 · Service Deposits 7,100.00 7,300.00 (200.00)
20000 · Account Payable 2,100.00 2,100.00 0.00
2205 · Accrued Simple (101.46) (101.46) 0.00
2220 · Accrued State PR Taxes 26.84 3.06 23.78
2230 · Accrued Vacation 30,435.83 30,435.83 0.00
2250 · Loans Payable - Current Portion 65,704.81 65,704.81 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 106,029.52 105,442.24 587.28
Total Current Liabilities 155,729.72 131,512.95 24,216.77
Long Term Liabilities

2665 · RCAC Loan - #0998 Backhoe 26,095.59 44,223.94 (18,128.35) 11 Pmts of 12

2500 · N/P - SWRCB 50,655.35 75,240.63 (24,585.28) 1 Pmt of 1

2700 · SRF Loan - Water 1,080,585.66 1,126,568.02 (45,982.36) 1 Pmt of 2
2900 · Less Current Portion (65,704.81) (65,704.81) 0.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 1,091,631.79 1,180,327.78 (88,695.99)
Total Liabilities 1,247,361.51 1,311,840.73 (64,479.22)
Equity

3000 · Contributed Capital 6,129,491.75 6,129,491.75 0.00
3100 · Retained Earnings 3,349,599.38 3,631,133.46 (281,534.08)
Net Income (170,803.64) (281,534.08) 110,730.44

Total Equity 9,308,287.49 9,479,091.13 (170,803.64)
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 10,555,649.00 10,790,931.86 (235,282.86)

13



 GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT
 Combined Revenue & Expense Report for Board

 May 2022

Current
Month

May 2022

YTD 
Actual

YTD 
Budget

Annual 
Budget

Δ YTD 
Actual 

vs. Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Water Charges
4100 · Residential 23,209.35 289,050.55 337,722.00 374,000.00 (48,671.45)
4110 · Commercial 24,831.75 279,543.25 253,743.00 281,000.00 25,800.25

Total Water Charges 48,041.10 568,593.80 591,465.00 655,000.00 (22,871.20)
4200 · Sewer Charges 36,218.70 411,755.60 418,237.99 463,165.00 (6,482.39)
4300 · Connection Fees 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 24,000.00 0.00
4650 · Late Charges 1,380.00 14,115.00 3,666.71 4,000.00 10,448.29
4700 · Other Operating Revenue 100.00 2,840.00 2,750.00 3,000.00 90.00

Total Income 85,739.80 1,005,304.40 1,024,119.70 1,149,165.00 (18,815.30)
Gross Profit 85,739.80 1,005,304.40 1,024,119.70 1,149,165.00 (18,815.30)

Expense
Administrative and General

5025 · Discount Program 180.00 2,005.00 3,300.00 3,600.00 (1,295.00)
5000 · Advertising 0.00 0.00 150.00 300.00 (150.00)
5005 · Bad Debts 1,303.75 7,534.94 5,000.00 10,000.00 2,534.94
5010 · Bank Charges

5012 · Merchant Account Fees 718.01 4,502.97 3,025.00 3,300.00 1,477.97
5010 · Bank Charges - Other 169.95 1,802.32 1,833.29 2,000.00 (30.97)

Total 5010 · Bank Charges 887.96 6,305.29 4,858.29 5,300.00 1,447.00
5020 · Directors Fees 0.00 1,650.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 (350.00)
5030 · Dues and Memberships 0.00 5,352.14 4,312.50 4,500.00 1,039.64
5035 · Education and Training 0.00 705.36 2,750.00 3,000.00 (2,044.64)
5036 · Education and Training - B.O.D. 0.00 0.00 275.00 300.00 (275.00)
Insurance

5040 · Liability 4,027.32 44,214.39 44,000.00 48,000.00 214.39
5050 · Workers' Comp 863.81 10,286.12 9,776.30 10,665.00 509.82
5055 · Health

5055.1 · Employee Portion (746.24) (8,208.64) (8,479.24) (9,250.00) 270.60
5055 · Health - Other 3,893.74 42,255.24 42,945.76 46,850.00 (690.52)

Total 5055 · Health 3,147.50 34,046.60 34,466.52 37,600.00 (419.92)
Total Insurance 8,038.63 88,547.11 88,242.82 96,265.00 304.29
5060 · Licenses, Permits, and Fees 2,611.91 28,476.74 23,650.00 25,600.00 4,826.74
5065 · Auto 577.67 2,336.91 2,000.00 2,500.00 336.91
5070 · Miscellaneous 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 (100.00)
5080 · Office Expense 2,059.39 8,382.14 7,333.26 8,000.00 1,048.88
5085 · Outside Services 1,263.66 7,874.81 10,633.26 11,600.00 (2,758.45)
5090 · Payroll Taxes 2,120.41 27,282.12 29,791.63 32,500.00 (2,509.51)
5095 · Penalties and Fines 0.00 6.04 6.04
5100 · Postage 208.99 2,304.80 3,186.26 3,500.00 (881.46)
5110 · Professional Fees 6,812.55 76,477.39 73,333.26 80,000.00 3,144.13
5120 · Property Taxes 0.00 0.00 50.00 50.00 (50.00)

14



 GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT
 Combined Revenue & Expense Report for Board

 May 2022

Current
Month

May 2022

YTD 
Actual

YTD 
Budget

Annual 
Budget

Δ YTD 
Actual 

vs. Budget

5125 · Repairs and Maintenance 0.00 1,586.07 500.00 500.00 1,086.07
5130 · Rents 1,670.00 9,185.00 9,185.00 10,020.00 0.00
5135 · Retirement 683.97 8,553.45 8,424.24 9,190.00 129.21
5137 · Supplies 27.87 1,405.51 1,100.00 1,200.00 305.51
5140 · Telephone 830.10 9,331.87 11,458.26 12,500.00 (2,126.39)
5145 · Tools 0.00 3,481.02 1,833.26 2,000.00 1,647.76
5150 · Travel and Meetings 0.00 1,111.95 1,000.00 1,000.00 111.95
5155 · Utilities 241.59 2,460.16 3,208.26 3,500.00 (748.10)
5160 · Wages

5165 · Wages - Overtime 735.00 6,181.50 3,841.74 4,300.00 2,339.76
5160 · Wages - Other 11,169.54 144,151.60 164,039.26 178,952.00 (19,887.66)

Total 5160 · Wages 11,904.54 150,333.10 167,881.00 183,252.00 (17,547.90)
5170 · Vacation Accrual Adjustment 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00

Total Administrative and General 41,422.99 452,688.92 465,556.30 518,277.00 (12,867.38)
Sewage Collection

6010 · Fuel 300.77 3,583.67 3,666.63 4,000.00 (82.96)
6030 · Repairs and Maintenance 0.00 4,813.70 13,750.00 15,000.00 (8,936.30)
6040 · Supplies 18.31 18.31 1,833.37 2,000.00 (1,815.06)
6050 · Utilities 362.34 3,528.74 4,125.00 4,500.00 (596.26)
6060 · Wages

6065 · Wages - Overtime Sewer Collecti 480.00 28,410.00 5,940.00 6,480.00 22,470.00
6060 · Wages - Other 4,257.03 37,292.24 29,562.50 32,250.00 7,729.74

Total 6060 · Wages 4,737.03 65,702.24 35,502.50 38,730.00 30,199.74
Total Sewage Collection 5,418.45 77,646.66 58,877.50 64,230.00 18,769.16
Sewage Treatment

6075 · Fuel 300.78 3,583.68 3,666.63 4,000.00 (82.95)
6080 · Monitoring 605.00 5,298.93 6,416.63 7,000.00 (1,117.70)
6100 · Repairs and Maintenance 4,350.15 7,225.42 13,750.00 15,000.00 (6,524.58)
6110 · Supplies 0.00 6,095.12 5,500.00 6,000.00 595.12
6120 · Utilities 1,179.82 10,406.98 9,166.63 10,000.00 1,240.35
6130 · Wages

6135 · Wages - Overtime Sewer Treatme 0.00 875.00 2,016.63 2,200.00 (1,141.63)
6130 · Wages - Other 4,089.55 47,580.87 32,193.37 35,120.00 15,387.50

Total 6130 · Wages 4,089.55 48,455.87 34,210.00 37,320.00 14,245.87
Total Sewage Treatment 10,525.30 81,066.00 72,709.89 79,320.00 8,356.11
Water Trans and Distribution

7075 · Fuel 300.78 3,583.68 3,666.63 4,000.00 (82.95)
7090 · Repairs and Maintenance 1,868.32 22,272.10 27,500.00 30,000.00 (5,227.90)
7100 · Supplies 0.00 1,273.91 4,583.37 5,000.00 (3,309.46)
7110 · Utilities 548.33 7,118.96 10,083.37 11,000.00 (2,964.41)
7120 · Wages

7125 · Wages - Overtime Water Trans & 141.00 2,898.00 7,333.37 8,000.00 (4,435.37)
7120 · Wages - Other 3,245.92 35,806.84 38,942.75 42,483.00 (3,135.91)

15



 GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT
 Combined Revenue & Expense Report for Board

 May 2022

Current
Month

May 2022

YTD 
Actual

YTD 
Budget

Annual 
Budget

Δ YTD 
Actual 

vs. Budget

Total 7120 · Wages 3,386.92 38,704.84 46,276.12 50,483.00 (7,571.28)
Total Water Trans and Distribution 6,104.35 72,953.49 92,109.49 100,483.00 (19,156.00)
Water Treatment

7020 · Fuel 300.77 3,583.76 3,666.63 4,000.00 (82.87)
7010 · Monitoring 170.00 7,610.48 4,125.00 4,500.00 3,485.48
7030 · Repairs and Maintenance 3,951.33 25,336.94 13,291.63 14,500.00 12,045.31
7040 · Supplies 0.00 11,010.17 11,000.00 12,000.00 10.17
7050 · Utilities 4,261.87 46,609.47 45,833.37 50,000.00 776.10
7060 · Wages

7065 · Wages - Overtime Water Treatme 321.00 4,231.00 7,333.37 8,000.00 (3,102.37)
7060 · Wages - Other 2,909.46 31,733.43 38,752.12 42,275.00 (7,018.69)

Total 7060 · Wages 3,230.46 35,964.43 46,085.49 50,275.00 (10,121.06)
Total Water Treatment 11,914.43 130,115.25 124,002.12 135,275.00 6,113.13

Total Expense 75,385.52 814,470.32 813,255.30 897,585.00 1,215.02
Net Ordinary Income 10,354.28 190,834.08 210,864.40 251,580.00 (20,030.32)
Other Income/Expense

Other Income
Property Tax Revenue

8010 · Secured 0.00 14,966.37 12,750.00 25,500.00 2,216.37
8020 · Unsecured 0.00 862.11 950.00 1,900.00 (87.89)
8025 · Prior Years 0.00 54.53 5.00 10.00 49.53
8030 · Supplemental - Current 0.00 134.76 125.00 250.00 9.76
8035 · Supplemental - Prior Years 0.00 0.00 25.00 50.00 (25.00)

Total Property Tax Revenue 0.00 16,017.77 13,855.00 27,710.00 2,162.77
8053 · Water Capital Grant Income 0.00 432.56 432.56
8060 · Interest Income 0.88 12.39 4,125.00 4,500.00 (4,112.61)
8070 · Other Non-Operating Revenue 166.84 13,826.02 1,166.63 1,500.00 12,659.39
9030 · Homeowners' Tax Relief 0.00 147.33 155.00 310.00 (7.67)

Total Other Income 167.72 30,436.07 19,301.63 34,020.00 11,134.44
Other Expense

9010 · Other Expenses 56.25 3,486.00 3,666.74 4,000.00 (180.74)
9040 · Depreciation 35,039.16 385,430.76 385,432.67 420,472.00 (1.91)
9050 · Interest Expense 115.74 3,157.03 3,160.00 3,270.00 (2.97)

Total Other Expense 35,211.15 392,073.79 392,259.41 427,742.00 (185.62)
Net Other Income (35,043.43) (361,637.72) (372,957.78) (393,722.00) 11,320.06

Net Income (24,689.15) (170,803.64) (162,093.38) (142,142.00) (8,710.26)

16



Date Num Memo Amount

101 Netlink
05/23/2022 11537 -250.00

Total 101 Netlink -250.00

Amazon.com
05/10/2022 DBT -25.36
05/17/2022 DBT -9.47
05/17/2022 DBT -26.95

Total Amazon.com -61.78

Blue Star Gas
05/23/2022 11544 -81.91

Total Blue Star Gas -81.91

Brenntag Pacific, Inc.
05/09/2022 11497 -4,356.87

Total Brenntag Pacific, Inc. -4,356.87

Capital Bank & Trust
05/05/2022 EFT 557880519 -820.87
05/05/2022 EFT 025158148 -346.02
05/19/2022 EFT 557880519 -801.95
05/19/2022 EFT 025158148 -337.95

Total Capital Bank & Trust -2,306.79

Clear Rate Communications
05/19/2022 11535 -342.23

Total Clear Rate Communications -342.23

Dazey's Building Center
05/23/2022 11540 -43.81

Total Dazey's Building Center -43.81

EDD
05/05/2022 EFT 499-0538-3 -751.47
05/05/2022 EFT 499-0538-3 -1.12
05/19/2022 EFT 499-0538-3 -0.28
05/19/2022 EFT 499-0538-3 -734.49

Total EDD -1,487.36

Emerald Technologies
05/05/2022 11520 -292.40

Total Emerald Technologies -292.40

etrailer
05/17/2022 DBT -227.07

Total etrailer -227.07

Fluentstream Tech
05/19/2022 11536 -117.10

Total Fluentstream Tech -117.10

Frontier Communications
05/26/2022 11548 -116.30

Total Frontier Communications -116.30

10:52 AM GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT
07/12/22 Check Register Report for Board
Accrual Basis May 2022

Page 1
17



Date Num Memo Amount

Glacier Water Vending
05/03/2022 DBT -0.60
05/03/2022 DBT -2.60
05/03/2022 DBT -2.60

Total Glacier Water Vending -5.80

HACH COMPANY
05/26/2022 11526 -3,199.23

Total HACH COMPANY -3,199.23

Harland Clarke Check Order
05/11/2022 -298.47

Total Harland Clarke Check Order -298.47

HughesNet
05/13/2022 DBT -104.29

Total HughesNet -104.29

IRS
05/05/2022 EFT 68-0296323 -3,369.48
05/19/2022 EFT 68-0296323 -3,268.86

Total IRS -6,638.34

Jamie Corsetti, CPA, Inc
05/17/2022 11528 -500.00

Total Jamie Corsetti, CPA, Inc -500.00

Jennie Short
05/17/2022 11525 -8,809.05

Total Jennie Short -8,809.05

Lori Ruiz
05/23/2022 11541 -200.00

Total Lori Ruiz -200.00

Manufacturers Edge Inc.
05/31/2022 DBT -227.57

Total Manufacturers Edge Inc. -227.57

NAPA
05/03/2022 11512 -103.53

Total NAPA -103.53

North Coast Laboratories Ltd.
05/12/2022 11527 -775.00
05/26/2022 11550 -635.00

Total North Coast Laboratories Ltd. -1,410.00

Owsley Electric
05/23/2022 11538 -463.05

Total Owsley Electric -463.05

PACE Supply
05/26/2022 11549 -1,318.32

Total PACE Supply -1,318.32

10:52 AM GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT
07/12/22 Check Register Report for Board
Accrual Basis May 2022

Page 2
18



Date Num Memo Amount

PG&E
05/11/2022 11522 -6,274.87

Total PG&E -6,274.87

Pitney Bowes Purchase Power
05/11/2022 11523 -208.99

Total Pitney Bowes Purchase Power -208.99

QuickBooks
05/12/2022 DBT -1,729.76

Total QuickBooks -1,729.76

Ralph Emerson
05/23/2022 11545 -50.00

Total Ralph Emerson -50.00

Recology Humboldt County
05/02/2022 11509 -12.00
05/25/2022 11546 -12.00

Total Recology Humboldt County -24.00

Redwood Merchant Services
05/05/2022 11613 -149.07
05/31/2022 -435.54

Total Redwood Merchant Services -584.61

RENNER
05/10/2022 DBT -1,203.10

Total RENNER -1,203.10

Rogers Machinery
05/25/2022 11547 -550.00

Total Rogers Machinery -550.00

Rural Community Assistance Prog - Backhoe
05/01/2022 DBT -1,798.25

Total Rural Community Assistance Prog - Backhoe -1,798.25

SDRMA
05/11/2022 11498 -3,553.50
05/23/2022 11539 -340.24

Total SDRMA -3,893.74

Sentry III Center
05/02/2022 11510 -835.00
05/31/2022 11552 -835.00

Total Sentry III Center -1,670.00

Starlink
05/26/2022 DBT -26.94

Total Starlink -26.94

Streamline Inc
05/05/2022 11519 -100.00

Total Streamline Inc -100.00

10:52 AM GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT
07/12/22 Check Register Report for Board
Accrual Basis May 2022

Page 3
19



Date Num Memo Amount

The Mitchell Law Firm, LLP
05/23/2022 11542 -1,829.00

Total The Mitchell Law Firm, LLP -1,829.00

Umpqua Bank
05/15/2022 11614 -183.00

Total Umpqua Bank -183.00

US Cellular
05/02/2022 11511 -204.47
05/31/2022 11551 -204.47

Total US Cellular -408.94

Wahlund Construction, Inc.
05/11/2022 11524 -1,887.86

Total Wahlund Construction, Inc. -1,887.86

Wyatt & Whitchurch, E.A. Inc.
05/05/2022 11521 -400.00

Total Wyatt & Whitchurch, E.A. Inc. -400.00

WYCKOFF'S Inc
05/23/2022 11543 -549.31

Total WYCKOFF'S Inc -549.31

Arreguin, Daniel J
05/05/2022 11513 -2,904.35
05/19/2022 11529 -2,825.05

Total Arreguin, Daniel J -5,729.40

Emerson, Ralph K
05/05/2022 11514 -2,916.85
05/19/2022 11530 -2,916.86

Total Emerson, Ralph K -5,833.71

Miller, Brian A
05/05/2022 11515 -1,902.80
05/19/2022 11531 -1,819.76

Total Miller, Brian A -3,722.56

Nieto, Mary
05/05/2022 11516 -1,394.20
05/19/2022 11532 -1,483.04

Total Nieto, Mary -2,877.24

Ruiz, Ricardo
05/05/2022 11517 -521.60
05/19/2022 11533 -262.80

Total Ruiz, Ricardo -784.40

TOTAL -75,280.95

10:52 AM GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT
07/12/22 Check Register Report for Board
Accrual Basis May 2022

Page 4
20



GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MINUTES 
 

 
Date of Meeting:  June 28th, 2022 
5:00 p.m. – Open Public Session 

 
 
 
I. REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
 Doug called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m 
 
II. ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM  
              Rio Anderson- Present 
  Doug Bryan- Present  
 Julie Lyon- Present 
   Dan Thomas- Present 
 
III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
 Motion: Julie Lyon  Second: Dan Thomas  Vote: 4-0 
 
IV. THE BOARD WILL ENTER CLOSED SESSION AT END OF MEETING IF NEEDED 

 
V. OPEN SESSION 
 
VI. COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

 
Richard Landes 
Kristen Vogel 
Lisa Music  
 

 
VII. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS –  
Operations Staff-    Update on River Conditions (www.waterwatch.usgs.gov) 

Office Staff- Customers calling in with confusion on rate increase from local newspaper article. 

Board Members- 0 

Correspondence- 0 

General Manager—Ralph Emerson   Pg.4 

 
 
 
 
VIII. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

A. CONSENT AGENDA          
 A.1 Approve Financials Date- April 2022   - pg. 5-15  

A.2 Approve: May 24th 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes  - pg. 16-18                          
A.3        Operations Safety Report-  pg. 19-23  

                  Motion: Rio Anderson  Second: Julie Lyon  Vote: 4-0 
  
 

B.          GENERAL BUSINESS – Action items 21



                                                                                                          
                                    
                                      
                          B.1        SHCP Update on Requested Water                                 pg. 24-25   
                                                 (discussion—possible action)  
                                         
  On June 21st 2022 the water board unanimously approved our request to extend our place of use 

to include the S.H.C.P.   
 
                          B.2  Tank Replacement Project and Planning Update                          pg. 26-28 
                                                (discussion-possible action)    
                                            Update from Jennie Short on the Tank Replacement Project.        
  

      B.3 Board Elections---Application    (information at meeting)                                                
                                               (discussion-possible action) 
                                      Doug Bryan and Julie Lyon are both up for re-election.           
 
  B.4   Customer Service Charge Assistance-LIHWAP                          pg. 29-36 
                                        (discussion-possible action)    
                                                 
   Customers must apply for this funding themselves. The information is available at the 

office and will be mailed out to all past due customers.  
 
  B.5  Joint Use Agreement for GSD equipment                                       pg. 37   
                                               (discussion-possible action)    
                                        
   Bring back with more information on the cost per equipment and staff time. 
                                              
                           
        C.            POLICY REVISION / ADOPTION  
               
                           C.1     Fire-Flow and Installation Requirements-Sec 7.9, 3a and 4b                    pg. 38-44 
                                   (discussion-action requested) 3rd reading      Resolution #22-008  
                                     Motion: Julie Lyon                          Second: Dan Thomas               Roll Call Vote: 4-0 
 
  The Board approved Resolution #22-008 with the minor changes made at the meeting.  
 
                          C.2     Water Ordinance- Drought Plan-Enforcement-Sec 14.5                             pg. 45-48 
                                        (discussion—possible action) 3rd reading 
                                        
  Bring back with the Board recommendations.  
 
                           C.3      Required Water Meter discontinuance—Base Rate Requirement                       
                                         (discussion—possible action)  Discussion at Meeting 
                                The Board discussed having a lower rate for AG meter customers during a drought.         
  Bring back with the Board recommendations.  
 
                           C.4       Water Ordinance 14.1 and 15.7 – Pool and Tank Water                           pg. 49-50  
                                          (discussion-no action)  2nd reading 
                          The Board discussed to have a cheaper rate for filling a swimming pool once a year with a cutoff 

time in July.          
  Bring back with the Board recommendations. 
 
 
 
   IX.          CLOSED SESSION  
 

No Closed Session Items 
 22



 X.        RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 
                        
                     No Action Taken 
 
                                              
 
XI. ITEMS FOR NEXT BOARD MEETING 

1. Drought Planning 
                  2.   Mandatory water disconnection responsibility 
                  3.   Project Update 
                  4.    
                  5.    
 
 
*Next Meeting is July 19, 2022 
 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Meeting ended at 6:39 p.m. 

23



24



25



26



27



28



BOARD MEETING MEMO July 19, 2022            Page 1 of 1 
Robertson/Wallan/Hurlbutt Tank Replacement Project 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MEMORANDUM 
 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2022 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Jennie Short, Consultant Project Manager 

Subject: Robertson/Wallan/Hurlbutt Tank Replacement Project 
 
 

GENERAL OVERVIEW 
 
Since the last Board Meeting, the project team has completed collection of the data 
needed by SHN to create a model of the major components of the water system.  
A.T.E.E.M. (SHN’s electrical and controls subconsultant) completed their site visit for the 
initial evaluation of the infrastructure and project elements.  The project team has had 
some coordination with Greg Swaffar, owner of the parcels surrounding the existing 
Hurlbutt Tank and the Upper Tank Site from the 2012 project as bid.  On future agendas 
there will be a closed session item each month to allow the Project Team to provide 
information associated with negotiations and get Board input if needed on how to proceed 
with terms and conditions of property acquisition. 
 
During the next month I am hopeful that SHN will complete the surveying and creation + 
calibration of the water model, which will allow them to make initial recommendation on 
the various project alternatives.   
 
Attached is the updated Project Tracking Report summarizes these FA items with their 
associated deliverables and the SHN tasks with estimated due dates and comments on 
the progress.  It also contains several other major milestones that will be part of the 
property acquisition and construction phases of the project so that the Board can track 
the entire project with its various elements. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
No change since last month. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Discussion item with no Board action recommended. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Project Tracking Report 

29



Robertson/Wallan/Hurlbutt Tank Replacement Project Tracking Report

FA
 It

em

S
H

N
 T

as
k 

#
Description Fu

nd
in

g
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
$ R

ei
m

b.
 

R
eq

ue
st

 $

S
H

N
 

C
on

tra
ct

 $

S
H

N
 

B
ill

ed
 $

E
st

im
at

ed
 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

S
ta

tu
s 

*

Comments

1 35,000

1 Data Collection and Water System 
Evaluation

28,000 1,440 U GSD Provided Data for 
Model

5 Draft PER 29,000 09/30/22

Deliver: Draft Preliminary Engineering Report

2 35,000 09/30/22
3 Survey 42,000
4 Geotechnical Investigation and Geologic 

Hazards Evaluation
42,500

Deliver: Geotechnical Report

3 55,000
5 Final PER portion of Task 5 47,500 12/31/22
6 30% Plans 46,000 12/31/22

Deliver: Final Preliminary Engineering Report 12/31/22
Preliminary Design 12/31/22

4 80,000
2 Special Studies - Wetlands, Biological, 

Botany, Cultural Resources
43,000 20,254 10/31/22 U Fieldwork completed

Deliver: Draft Environmental Documents 11/25/23
Final Environmental Documents 01/27/23

5 70,000

Deliver: Draft Plans, Specifications & Bid 
Documents (60%)

02/10/23

 Final Plans, Specifications & Bid 
Documents (100%)

04/10/23

Project Evaluation, Alternative Analysis and Pre-
design

Surveying and Geotechnical Investigation

Final Preliminary Engineering Report

Environmental Documents (CEQA)

Plans & Specifications

30



Robertson/Wallan/Hurlbutt Tank Replacement Project Tracking Report

FA
 It

em

S
H

N
 T

as
k 

#
Description Fu

nd
in

g
A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
$ R

ei
m

b.
 

R
eq

ue
st

 $

S
H

N
 

C
on

tra
ct

 $

S
H

N
 

B
ill

ed
 $

E
st

im
at

ed
 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

S
ta

tu
s 

*

Comments

6 20,000

Deliver: Draft TMF Assessment form & supporting 
documentation

05/08/23

Final TMF Assessment form & supporting 
documentation

06/30/23

7 10,000 C June 2022

Deliver: Draft Rate Study 05/08/23
Final Rate Study 06/30/23

8 20,000
Deliver: Quarterly Progress Reports P Rpt#1 Submitted

9 Work Completion (Planning Phase) 03/31/24

TOTAL: $325,000 $0 $278,000 $21,694

Post Planning Phase Major Milestones

Right of Way Acquisition U Coord w/ prop owners
Issuance of Federal, State & County 
permits
Application for Construction Funding
Execution of FA for Construction Phase
Bid Project
Award Project
Begin Construction Work
Complete Construction Work
Final Funding Reimbursement

* Notes: Completion Status Key: C = Task Complete
U = Task Underway
P = Periodic Task for duration of project

Water Rate Study

Administration

Technical, Managerial and Financial Assessment

31



32



                      Garberville Sanitary District 
                                             PO Box 211 
                                         919 Redwood DR. 
                                    Garberville, CA. 95542 
                     Office(707)923-9566   Fax(707)923-3130 
 

                              
 
 

Board Member Candidate Process and Timeline 
 
 

1. Meet with Humboldt County Elections Official between July 18th—August 12th 
 

2. Elections Office is-----Location: 2426 6th Street, Eureka, CA 95501 
Phone: 707-445-7481      Fax:707-445-7204 
Hours: Monday – Friday, 8:30 am – 12 (noon) and 1 – 5 pm 

 
3. Board Member Terms expiring: 

     Doug Bryan 
     Julie Lyon 

        
4. It will take between 30-45 minutes to complete the candidate information form, so give 

yourself adequate time. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

33



1 
 

MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 
 

Between the ________________________ District and _______________________________ 
For Support and Assistance during Non-Emergency Events 

 
 
This Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered effective as of 

________________, 2022 (the “Effective Date”), by the ____________________________ District (“_______”) 
and the other parties signatory to this Agreement from time to time (_________________________________ and 
the other parties signatory to this Agreement from time to time being hereinafter referred to, individually, as a 
"Party" and, collectively, as the "Parties"). With respect to each Party other than __________________________, 
the date set forth next to such Party's signature shall constitute the effective date for such signatory to this 
Agreement (each such, a "Party Effective Date"). 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, _________________________________ provides ______________________  to certain 

municipal customers, with _________________________________ and such municipal customers serving a 
population of approximately ________, constituting approximately ____% of Humboldt County's population; 

 
WHEREAS, as of the Effective Date, such customers consist of the 

______________________________________; 
 
WHEREAS, terms and conditions for interagency mutual aid and support during times of emergency are 

provided for in a variety of mutual aid agreements which have been developed and executed by various parties 
over the years; 

 
WHEREAS, the mutual aid agreement for assistance during emergencies that is most applicable and 

widely used for water and wastewater agencies in California is the WARN 2007 Omnibus Mutual Assistance 
Agreement approved and adopted by the California Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network on September 
30, 2007; 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties agree to use the WARN 2007 Omnibus Mutual Assistance Agreement for any 

mutual aid and assistance requested and provided during emergency events; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to establish terms and conditions under which a Party may provide 

interagency mutual aid and support under non-emergency circumstances, including reimbursement for equipment, 
supplies and personnel made available to another Party, with the intent of facilitating the advancement of the 
Parties' collective service mission to the community. 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the Parties 

agree as follows: 
 
1. Agreement to Provide Assistance Voluntary.  Subject to the discretion of each Party to decline 

to do so, the Parties agree to consider providing mutual aid and assistance to each other in times of need not 
constituting an emergency, on a voluntary basis. In general, assistance will be in the form of resources, such as 
equipment, supplies and personnel. The execution of this Agreement shall not create any duty to respond on the part 
of any Party to an assistance request from another Party and assistance shall be given only when a Party determines, 
in its unilateral discretion, that its own needs can be met while rendering assistance to a requesting Party. The 
execution of this Agreement by any Party shall not create a duty to provide assistance to any other Party to this 
Agreement and no Party shall be liable for any damages incurred by any other Party as a result of such Party's 
unwillingness or inability to provide the requested assistance. 
 

34



2 
 

2. Procedures. 
 
(a) Request for Assistance. An authorized representative of any Party may request aid and assistance 

(in such capacity, a "Requesting Party") from an authorized representative of any other Party (in such capacity, 
a "Responding Party”). Requests for assistance may be made orally or in writing. The authorized 
representative(s) of the Responding Party shall evaluate the request and, as soon as reasonably practicable, 
notify the Requesting Party whether the Responding Party is able and/or willing to provide the requested 
assistance; all such determinations shall be made in the sole and unilateral discretion of the Responding 
Party. In the event a Responding Party agrees to provide the requested assistance, the Requesting Party and 
the Responding Party shall complete a memorandum of assistance in substantially the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit A (each, a " Memorandum") to document the specific terms and conditions of the applicable provision of 
aid or assistance. At the sole discretion of the Responding Party, the requirement to complete this Memorandum 
may be waived, and the reimbursement provisions shall be agreed to orally. For purposes of this Agreement, an 
"authorized representative" of a Party shall mean an employee or officer of a Party who is authorized, on behalf 
of such Party, to request or offer assistance or to withdraw or refuse to offer assistance. 

 
(b) Direction and Control of Responding Party Employees. Employees of a Responding Party 

provided under this Agreement will be under the direction and control of the Requesting Party. The Requesting 
Party's designated supervisor(s) must keep accurate records of time expended and work performed by such 
employees during the period of assistance. 

 
(c) Withdrawal of Assistance. The Responding Party's authorized representative shall have the right, 

in such authorized representative's sole and absolute discretion, to withdraw some or all of its resources and/or 
employees at any time for any reason, without further obligation or liability to the Requesting Party. 

 
(d) Insurance. Each Party to this Agreement shall maintain insurance or a self-insurance program 

that covers activities that it may undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Upon request of the Responding Party, 
the Requesting Party shall provide to the Responding Party such proof of insurance as is reasonably acceptable 
to the Responding Party. 

 
3. Cost Reimbursement. 
 
(a) Labor. The Requesting Party shall reimburse the Responding Party for all direct and indirect 

labor costs of any employees provided by the Responding Party, such labor costs to include, but not be limited 
to, any such employee's applicable salary or hourly wage plus all indirect benefit compensation factors. Each 
Party shall be responsible for providing and administering worker's compensation benefits for its employees. 
Hourly Rates to be determined at time an agreement has been requested. 

 
(b) Equipment. Use of equipment, such as construction equipment, vehicles, tools, pumps and 

generators, shall be at the rate set forth on the applicable Memorandum. Unless otherwise expressly provided 
on the applicable Memorandum, the equipment rate shall not include fuel, lubrication, transportation or 
loading/unloading of provided equipment, each of which shall either be provided by the Requesting Party or 
reimbursed by the Requesting Party to the Responding Party at the Responding Party's actual cost as specifically 
detailed in the Responding Party's invoice to the Requesting Party. At the option of the Responding Party, 
equipment may be provided with an operator. Hourly rates to be determined at time an agreement has been 
requested. 

 
(c) Return of Equipment. All equipment shall be returned to the Responding Party as soon as 

practicable and reasonable under the circumstances or, at the latest, within twenty-four (24) hours after receipt 
by the Requesting Party of the Responding Party's oral or written request for return of equipment. 

 
 
 

35



3 
 

 
(d) Damage to Equipment. In the event equipment is damaged while being dispatched to the 

Requesting Party, or while in the custody and use of the Requesting Party, the Requesting Party shall reimburse 
the Responding Party for the reasonable cost of repairing said damaged equipment. If the equipment cannot be 
repaired, the Requesting Party shall reimburse the Responding Party for the cost of replacing such equipment that 
is of at least equal value and functionality as determined by the Responding Party. If the Responding Party must 
lease a piece of equipment while the Requesting Party equipment is being repaired or replaced, the Requesting 
Party shall reimburse the Responding Party for such lease cost. 

 
(e) Supplies. The Requesting Party shall reimburse the Responding Party in kind or at actual 

replacement cost for use of expendable or non-returnable supplies. Other supplies and reusable items that are 
returned to the Responding Party in a clean, damage-free condition shall not be charged to the Requesting 
Party and no rental fee shall be charged. Supplies that are returned to the Responding Party with damage shall be 
treated as expendable supplies for purposes of cost reimbursement. 

 
(f) Invoicing. The Responding Party shall provide an itemized invoice to the Requesting Party for 

the expenses incurred in providing assistance under this Agreement not later than thirty (30) days after the end 
of the month in which assistance is provided. The Responding Party may request additional time within which to 
submit any invoice and the Requesting Party shall not unreasonably withhold its written consent to such request. 

 
(g) Payment. The Requesting Party shall reimburse the Responding Party within thirty (30) days 

from the receipt of each invoice. The Requesting Party may request additional time within which to pay any invoice 
and the Responding Party shall not unreasonably withhold its written consent to such request; provided, however, 
that no invoice shall be paid later than ninety (90) days after the date such invoice is submitted to the Requesting 
Party. 

 
4. Indemnification; Notice; Tort Claims. 
 
(a) Indemnification.  The Requesting Party shall defend, fully indemnify and hold harmless, the 

Responding Party, its officers, agents and employees, from any and all claims, losses, damages, injuries and 
liabilities of every kind, nature and description, directly or indirectly arising out of Responding Party’s work while 
Responding Party’s agents and/or employees are performing work or otherwise rendering services to a Requesting 
Party. The period commences when personnel, equipment, or supplies depart from Responding Party’s 
facility/facilities and ends when the personnel, equipment, or supplies return to the Responding Party’s 
facility/facilities (portal to portal). The scope of the Requesting Member’s duty to indemnify and defend 
Responding Party includes, but is not limited to, suits arising from, or related to, negligent or wrongful use of 
equipment or supplies on loan to the Requesting Party, or faulty workmanship or other negligent acts, errors or 
omissions by Requesting Party or the Responding Party’s agents and/or employees while any such agents or 
employees are performing work or otherwise rendering services to a Requesting Party during a period of assistance, 
as described above. 

  
(b) Notice. Each Party shall provide written notice of any claim or potential claim of which such Party 

becomes aware to each other Party who has or may have an indemnity obligation under this Agreement with respect 
to such claim or potential claim. 

 
(c) Tort Claims. Each Party intends that this Agreement shall in no way abrogate or constitute a waiver 

of any immunity or defense available to it under California law, including, without limitation, any and all claim 
presentation requirements created by the California Tort Claims Act (California Government Code § 810, et seq.). 

 
 
 
 
 

36



4 
 

5. Miscellaneous. 
 
(a) Records; Confidentiality. Authorized representatives of each Party shall have access to the other's 

books, documents, notes, reports, papers and records to the extent reasonably necessary for the purpose of 
reviewing the accuracy of any invoice(s) rendered for assistance provided under this Agreement. Each Party 
hereto agrees to keep confidential any such records or other information obtained by such Party as a result of 
its participation in this Agreement, including, but not limited to, any map, report, notes, papers, opinions or 
e-mail which relates to the system vulnerabilities of any other Party to this Agreement. 
 

(b) Effective Date.  This Agreement shall take effect on the Effective Date with respect to 
_________________________________ and on each other Party's applicable Party Effective Date with 
respect to each such other Party. 

 
(c) Termination. Any Party may withdraw from this Agreement by providing written notice to 

the other Parties. Any withdrawing Party' s duty to reimburse any other Party for assistance rendered and 
any indemnity obligation of such withdrawing Party for any claims for damages accruing prior to such 
Party's withdrawal from this Agreement shall survive such withdrawal. 

 
(d) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of California without reference to the choice of law principles thereof. 
 
(e) Entire Agreement; Modification; Waiver. This Agreement and, with respect to each 

applicable Responding Party and Requesting Party, each Memorandum of Assistance entered into hereunder, 
contain the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and there are no 
agreements, understandings, representations and warranties regarding the subject matter hereof between any 
Parties other than those set forth or referred to herein. This Agreement may not be modified or amended 
except by an instrument or instruments in writing signed by the Parties hereto. Any Party hereto may, only 
by an instrument in writing, waive compliance by any other Party hereto with any term or provision of this 
Agreement. The waiver by any Party hereto of a breach of any term or provision of this Agreement shall not 
be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach. 

 
(f) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which 

shall be considered one and the same agreement, and shall become effective when one or more counterparts 
have been signed by each of the Parties and delivered to the other Parties. Photocopies, facsimiles and PDF 
files of any signed counterpart of this Agreement are effective and valid for any and all purposes as if they 
were the original signed copy. 

 
(g) No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement or any ancillary documents, 

whether expressed or implied, is intended or shall be construed to confer upon or give to any person, firm, 
corporation or legal entity other than the Parties any rights, remedies or other benefits under or by reason of 
this Agreement. 

 
(h) Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected. 
 
(i) Worker’s Compensation Claims.  The Responding Party is responsible for providing worker’s 

compensation benefits and administering worker’s compensation for its employees.  The Requesting Party is 
responsible for providing worker’s compensation benefits and administering worker’s compensation for its 
employees.   

 
 

[THE NEXT PAGE IS THE SIGNATURE PAGE] 
 

37



 

       Sec 14.5 Drought Contingency Plan. 
During drought conditions as identified by the State of California, Humboldt County or 
Garberville Sanitary District, the Drought Contingency Plan will go into effect immediately. 

 This plan will be implemented by Garberville Sanitary District and the public will be made 
aware of this plan through the media and customer outreach.  

 Customers will be required to conserve water including but not limited to gallons per day 
water usage and if they don’t comply, may be fined for gallons of water used above the 
maximum allowed.  

Customers that require water for agricultural or outdoor use during Summer months will be 
required to have adequate water storage to meet their demands, in the event of a drought or 
repairs because on (Phase 2) of the Drought Contingency Plan, water will be disconnected or 
restricted for outdoor use. 

Those Customers who choose not to have water storage may have water disconnected during 
drought events or repairs to distribution system which is why it is recommended to have 
enough storage for your personal use. 
Customers who disregard the drought phases will be in violation and subject to fines 
which begin at $100 per occurrence/day beginning with (phase 2-4) and can result in 
water disconnection with a $1,000 reconnection fee for continued violations over 5 days. 
The fine will be determined by the General Manager or designee under the direction of 
the Governing Board. 

1. 1st phase of drought conservation plan will require all customers to voluntarily reduce 
water consumption. (10cfs) in South Fork of Eel River 
2nd phase will be to stop all outdoor watering for everything except animals, vegetables 
or fruit. (7cfs) 
3rd phase will require only using water on even days for even addresses and odd days for 
odd addresses. specific days, designated by GSD (5cfs). 
4th phase requires all customers to only use water for health and safety, with no outside 
watering (4cfs) 

2. Continual updates to customers will educate and inform of conditions 
3. Ongoing: develop alternative water sources including, wells, springs, shared water with 

neighboring water districts including water hauling. 
4. Ongoing: gray water education for irrigation 
5. Ongoing: educate customers on personal water storage opportunities and conservation 

measures 
6. Ongoing: leak monitoring and repairs 
7. Ongoing: build additional water storage tanks or ponds 
8. Identify all diversions from the river or GSD distribution system and report to law 

enforcement. 
Ongoing: Participate in all drought planning forums to share ideas and planning strategies while 
developing partnerships on collaborative water projects and funding opportunities 

38



                      Garberville Sanitary District 
                                             PO Box 211 
                                         919 Redwood dr. 
                                    Garberville, CA. 95542 
                     Office(707)923-9566   Fax(707)923-3130 
 

 
 

DROUGHT PREPAREDNESS 
 
 

As we start the warmer months of summer, it is once again time to plan for hot 
temperatures and low river levels, thus creating drought conditions, that must be planned 
for by all.  
  The river level is a key factor in determining the amount of water for use, so as the flow 
decreases, we may have to begin (drought contingency measures).  
 
We recommend that you begin storing water required for your personal use, so that when 
conditions worsen, you have enough water to sustain you until river flow increases. 
 The normal daily water use for a single family home is 200gpd, while less water is required 
for health and safety. So plan accordingly. 
 
Filling pools after July 1st is prohibited unless authorized by the GSD General Manager or 
designee.  
 
Garberville Sanitary District will promote “Water Awareness Week” so that we can assist 
the community in reuse plans and to provide information regarding drought actions and 
river levels.  
 
   The drought plan with phases of action is located on our web site. 
                 garbervillesd.org   
 
Please call our office for more information and we will notify you as river conditions 
change.   
                              

 
 

Ralph Emerson 
 
General Manager 
Garberville Sanitary District 
                                                               

39



RESOLUTION 22-009 
THIS RESOLUTION AUTHORIZES THE GARBERVILLE SANITARY 

DISTRICT TO CHANGE WATER ORDINANCE, 
SEC. 14.5 DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN 

 
        A.   WHEREAS,    It has been determined that the Garberville Sanitary 
District will change Water Ordinance Sec. 14.5 drought contingency procedures. 
 
         B.    WHEREAS,  Resolution 22-009 will allow the Board to make 
appropriate changes to this Ordinance and give clear direction to customers 
and staff, what is required when drought plan has been initiated 
 
        C.    WHEREAS,     This Resolution explains that it violates GSD Ordinance 
when you do not comply with the drought contingency procedures and 
restrictions on water use. 
 

        D      WHEREAS, The adaption of Resolution 22-009 will take effect 
immediately and describes the drought contingency plan, with all of the 
associated actions required to conserve water.  

 
       E.   WHEREAS, The new Water Ordinance, Sec. 14.5, drought contingency 
plan, will replace the existing ordinance of conserving water and water 
restriction steps. 
 
       Sec 14.5 Drought Contingency Plan. 

During drought conditions as identified by the State of California, Humboldt 
County or Garberville Sanitary District, the Drought Contingency Plan will go 
into effect immediately. 
 This plan will be implemented by Garberville Sanitary District and the public 
will be made aware of this plan through the media and customer outreach.  

 Customers will be required to conserve water including but not limited to 
gallons per day water usage and if they don’t comply, may be fined for 
gallons of water used above the maximum allowed.  

40



Customers that require water for agricultural or outdoor use during Summer 
months will be required to have adequate water storage to meet their 
demands, in the event of a drought or repairs because on (Phase 2) of the 
Drought Contingency Plan, water will be disconnected or restricted for 
outdoor use. 
Those Customers who choose not to have water storage may have water 
disconnected during drought events or repairs to distribution system which 
is why it is recommended to have enough storage for your personal use. 
Customers who disregard the drought phases will be in violation and subject 
to fines which begin at $100 per occurrence/day beginning with (phase 2-4) 
and can result in water disconnection with a $1,000 reconnection fee for 
continued violations over 5 days. The fine will be determined by the General 
Manager or designee under the direction of the Governing Board. 
1. 1st phase of drought conservation plan will require all customers to 

voluntarily reduce water consumption. (10cfs) in South Fork of Eel River 
2nd phase will be to stop all outdoor watering for everything except 
animals, vegetables or fruit. (7cfs) 
3rd phase will require only using water on even days for even addresses 
and odd days for odd addresses.(5cfs). 
4th phase requires all customers to only use water for health and safety, 
with no outside watering (4cfs) 

2. Continual updates to customers will educate and inform of conditions 
3. Ongoing: develop alternative water sources including, wells, springs, 

shared water with neighboring water districts including water hauling. 
4. Ongoing: gray water education for irrigation 
5. Ongoing: educate customers on personal water storage opportunities and 

conservation measures 
6. Ongoing: leak monitoring and repairs 
7. Ongoing: build additional water storage tanks or ponds 
8. Identify all diversions from the river or GSD distribution system and 

report to law enforcement. 
        Ongoing: Participate in all drought planning forums to share ideas and 

planning strategies while developing partnerships on collaborative water 
projects and funding opportunities 

 

41



    NOW, THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN THAT, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT APPROVES CHANGING THE WATER 
ORDINANCE, SEC. 14.5 DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN 
 
RESOLUTION 22-009 WAS PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 19th DAY OF 
JULY 2022 BY THE FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE:   
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
       __________________________________ 
       Doug Bryan, Chair Person 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________   
Ralph Emerson, General Manager 
 

42



                      Garberville Sanitary District 
                                             PO Box 211 
                                         919 Redwood DR. 
                                    Garberville, CA. 95542 
                     Office(707)923-9566   Fax(707)923-3130 
 

                              
 
 

MANDATED WATER DISCONTINUANCE POLICY 
 
 

Garberville Sanitary District requires agricultural water meter be installed for property used for 
commercial cannabis or other agricultural crop, which allows us to reduce usage or disconnect water from 
agricultural demand while allowing residence to continue receiving water for personal health and safety 
use. 
 
When District necessity or drought requires agricultural water meters to be disconnected, the customer’s 
base rate will be removed until water is turned on. Base rate may be reduced to $50/month if 
disconnection is required for a longer period.  
 
Base rate and consumption charges will continue once the water is reconnected  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

43



 

 
ARTICLE 14 - GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

 Sec 14.1 Pools and Tanks.  When an abnormally large quantity of water is desired for filling 
a swimming pool or other purposes, arrangements must be made with the District prior to taking 
such water.  Permission to take water in unusual quantities will be given only if it can be safely 
delivered through the District’s facilities and if other consumers are not inconvenienced thereby. 
A copy of procedures will be given along with permission. (See Section 15.7) 

a. Filling pools must be completed by July 1st or application will be denied. 
b. Filling pools will be denied when drought plan is in place. 

      Sec 15.7 Fee for Filling Pools.  Any person wanting to fill a swimming pool, must fill out an 
application at the GSD Office (no cost). This application will be on file with customer account 
and used to verify the gallons required. 

                   a.   Fee for filling pools will be less than regular potable water use and 
                         based on gallons used. 
                   b.   The fee will be calculated by the units of water used (748 gallons = 1 unit). 
                   c.   The units of water will be multiplied by the 2nd tier of customer water rate.  
                   d.   When pool is filled after July 1st, customer will pay full consumption charge. 

                          

 

44



                      Garberville Sanitary District 
                                             PO Box 211 
                                         919 Redwood dr. 
                                    Garberville, CA. 95542 
                     Office(707)923-9566   Fax(707)923-3130 

 
 

          APPLICATION FOR FILLING POOLS 
. 
 
Property and Contact Details: 
 
Property to be served:                                                     APN #_______________________ 
 
           
Applicant Details: (if not the owner) 
Full Name:_________________________________________________________________ 
Street Address:______________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address:____________________________________________________________ 
Phone Work#____________________________   Cell Phone#________________________ 
Email Address:_______________________________________ 
 
�  Residential Home or Apartment 
�  Commercial  
 
Pool Details: 
 
a. Location___________________________________________________________________ 
b. Gallons_____________________________________ 

 
      Sec 15.7 Fee for Filling Pools.  Any person wanting to fill a swimming pool, must fill out an 
application at the GSD Office (no cost). This application will be on file with customer account 
and used to verify the gallons required. 
                   a.   Fee for filling pools will be less than regular potable water use and 
                         based on gallons used. 
                   b.   The fee will be calculated by the units of water used (748 gallons = 1 unit). 
                   c.   The units of water will be multiplied by the 2nd tier of customer water rate.         

 
 
I, the undersigned, hereby declare that the information given on this application is true and correct. I am 
authorized to make this application in the name of the legal owner and in so doing, accept the conditions 
of the Garberville Sanitary District for compliance with pool Ordinance. Sec 14.1 and 15.7 
 
 
Name__________________________________________   Date______________________ 
 

45



RESOLUTION 22-010 
THIS RESOLUTION AUTHORIZES THE GARBERVILLE SANITARY 

DISTRICT TO CHANGE WATER ORDINANCE, 
SEC. 14.1 and 15.7 POOLS AND TANKS, FEE FOR FILLING POOLS 

 
        A.   WHEREAS,    It has been determined that the Garberville Sanitary 
District will change Water Ordinance Sec. 14.1 and 15.7 Filling Pools  
 
         B.    WHEREAS,  Resolution 22-010 will allow the Board to make 
appropriate changes to this Ordinance and give clear direction to customers 
and staff, that when a customer wants to fill a pool, they must fill out an 
application and adhere to the GSD ordinance.  
 
        C.    WHEREAS,     This Resolution explains that it violates GSD Ordinance 
when you fill a pool without GSD approval. 
 

        D      WHEREAS, The adaption of Resolution 22-010 will take effect 
immediately and describes the requirements for filling a pool.  

 
       E.   WHEREAS, The new Water Ordinance, Sec. 14.1 and 15.7 replaces the 
previous ordinance and goes into effect immediately after approved by the 
GSD Board.  
 

ARTICLE 14 - GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 Sec 14.1 Pools and Tanks.  When an abnormally large quantity of water is 
desired for filling a swimming pool or other purposes, arrangements must be 
made with the District prior to taking such water.  Permission to take water in 
unusual quantities will be given only if it can be safely delivered through the 
District’s facilities and if other consumers are not inconvenienced thereby. A 
copy of procedures will be given along with permission. (See Section 15.7) 

a. Filling pools must be completed by July 1st or application will be 
denied. 

46



b. Filling pools will be denied when drought plan is in place. 

      Sec 15.7 Fee for Filling Pools.   
Any person wanting to fill a swimming pool, must fill out an application at the 
GSD Office (no cost). This application will be on file with customer account and 
used to verify the gallons required. 
               a.   Fee for filling pools will be less than regular potable water use and 
                         based on gallons used. 

b.  The fee is calculated by units of water used (748 gallons = 1 unit). 
c. The units of water will be multiplied by the 2nd tier of customer 

Water rate. 
d. When pool is filled after July 1st, customer will pay full    

consumption charge. 
                    

 
 
    NOW, THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN THAT, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT APPROVES CHANGING THE WATER 
ORDINANCE, SEC. 14.1AND 15.7, FILLING POOLS. 
 
RESOLUTION 22-010 WAS PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 19th DAY OF 
JULY 2022 BY THE FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE:   
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
       __________________________________ 
       Doug Bryan, Chair Person 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________   

47



Ralph Emerson, General Manager 
 

48


	Agenda-July 19th, 2022
	General Manager—Ralph Emerson   Pg. 8

	Newsom 2022-2023 Budget--Correspondence
	Newsom Signs Expansive $308 Billion 2022-2023 State Budget
	By UVanessa GonzalesU posted 21 hours ago


	GM Report-July 19,2022
	BODAgendaItem-FinancialStatements_MAY_07-19-22mtg
	2022 05 Board Fin Rpts.pdf
	Combined RE
	Cash Flow-Fiscal

	Balance Sheet 05-31-22 vs 07-01-2021.pdf
	Sheet1


	BOD Meeting Minutes June 2022
	General Manager—Ralph Emerson   Pg.4

	May 2022 Special Meeting Minutes
	Safety Meeting July 2022
	BODAgendaItem-TankReplacement_07-19-22mtg
	ProjectTrackingOverview 2022 0714.pdf
	Sheet1


	LIHWAP Flyer--B.2
	Board Candidate Process--B.3
	Mutual Aid Agreement--B.4
	Sec 14.5 Updated Drought Ordinance-C.2
	Drought Letter 2022--C.2
	Resolution #22-009 Sec Drought Enforcement-C.2
	Mandated Water Discontinuance Policy-C.3
	Pool Fee- Sec 14.1 and 15.7---C.4
	ARTICLE 14 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

	Filling Pool Application--C.4
	Resolution #22-010 Sec 14.1 and 15.7-Pool Fill-C.4
	ARTICLE 14 - GENERAL PROVISIONS




